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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of Flame Facilities Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Flame Facilities Private Limited ("the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesald financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, and its Profit
including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10})
of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidenca we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion,

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmation and, in doing s,
consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materia'ly misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report ithis regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity
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and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the acouracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's finandial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic dedisions of
users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

» [Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nat
detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral,

¢ (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the drcumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectivenass of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to eventsor
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we condude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn inour
auditor’s report to the related disdosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our condusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, induding the



disclosures, and whether the finandal statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the bestof our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(@)

We have sought and obtained a.l1 the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss induding Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Eguity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we would
like to state that audit of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting is not applicable to the

Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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(2)

(b)

(c)

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

Company did not have any long-term contracts indluding derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable |osses.

There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other persons or enlities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or investin other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), incduding foreign entities (“Funding Parties"}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the drcumstances, nothing has come to our notice that cause us to believe that the
representation given by the Management under paragraphs (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the current year.

The company has used accounting software- Tally Prime for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same
has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Mahendra Doshi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 105765W/W101009

Pocafandn Sl

Mahendra Doshi

Partner

Membership No. 041316
UDIN: 2 SO4121 4 RMT.POKI60

Flace: Mumbai

Date: 30-04-2025




"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

{Referred to in Paragraph 1, under the heading of "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that -

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{(a) (B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets and hence répﬂrﬁng under clause (i)
(a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year.
Mo discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence, dause (i) (c) of paragraph3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and Intangible assets during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings have been initiated and are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules mada thersunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not have any inventories and hence reporting under dause (i) (a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

(b)At any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctigned any working capital
limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,

il The Company has granted unsecured loans to other parties. Point iii (a) and ii(b) are covered
in schedule below, (Rupees in Crores):

Sr Parties Aggregate Amount | Outstanding as Whether
no of loans and on 31.03.2025 | Prejudicial
Advances (in crores) (in crores) to Interest
of company
1 Subsidiaries, Joint il il MNA
Ventures or Associates |
2 Other Parties 0 26.55 No

(iii) {c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has granted a loan which is repayable on demand. During the year, the
Company has not demanded repayment of such loan. Having regard to the fact that the
repayment of principa! or payment of interest has not been demanded by the Company, in our
opinion, the repayments of principal amounts and receipt of interest are regular.

(iii} (d) The amount is not overdue and hence clause is not applicable.

(iif) (€) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan which has fallen due



during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of
existing loans given to the same parties.

(iiiy (f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

demand or without spedifying any terms or period of repayment granted to Promoters, related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not directly or indirectly advanced any loans to the person or given
guarantees or securities in connection with the loan taken by persons covered under Section
185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in
respect of investments, loans, guarantee or security given, as applicable,

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules framead there under. Therefore, the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
nat applicable to the Company. '

The Central Gavernment has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub Section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of the activities undertaken by the Company.

In respect of Statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory
dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid
statutory dues were outstanding, as at 31* March, 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except as stated below;

Sr. | Nature of Dues | Amount (Rs. | Period to which
No. in thousands)| Amount relates

1 Pravident Fund 117.74 FY 19-20

2 Provident Fund 79.61 FY 20-21

3 Provident Fund 398.68 FY 21-22

4 Provident Fund 101.09 FY 22-23

5 Provident Fund 150.25 FY 23-24

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above which have not beendeposited

(viii)

(i)

as on 315t March, 2025 on account of any disputes.

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account, or which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which have been previously unrecorded income. Therefore, the dause
(viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any loans from financial institutions or banks or government
and hence, reporting under dause (a) (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.



(x)

()

(xif)

(i)

{=iv)

(xv)

(2wl

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

al‘

bl‘

The Company is a not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authorities.

The Company has not obtained any term loans during the vear and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
{c) (i) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any fund during the year and hence, reporting under clause
{d} (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures,

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, or joint ventures, or associate companies and hence, reporting under dause
() (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{incuding debt instruments) during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause (a) (x) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

On an gverall examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not raised any Funds
during the year,

Mo fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistieblower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not 2 Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act and hence reparting
under, the provisions of clause (a), (b) and (c) (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act read with refated rules, the
Company s not required to constitute an Audit Committee and therefore, requirement
related to Audit Committee approval of related party transactions are not applicable to
the Company. The Company is in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, as
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions hawve been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Internal audit is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under this clause is
not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions covered by
Section 192 of the Act with its directors or persons connected with them and hence,
reporting under dause 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinian, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under dauses 3(xvi) (a), (b), and
{c) of the Order is not applicable.



(xvi)

(i)

(i)

(00)

d. The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per

the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable,

On an averall examination of the balance sheet, the company has not incurred cash losses
during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 35 to the finandial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liahilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, the our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causesus to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get dischargedby the Company as
and when they fall due.

a. There are no CSR projects carried out by the Company and there is no unspent CSR amount

required to transfer a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Actwithin a
peniod of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso
to sub-Section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.

b. There are no ongeoing CSR projects run by the Company and hence, there is no amount

remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to
any ongeoing project, which is required to transferred to special account in compliance with
the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act.

For Mahendra Doshi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 105765W/W101009
[V\ﬂ,ﬁ:«ﬁud-"-‘f* M

Mahendra K. Doshi
Partner

Membership No. 041316
UDIN: 25041516 R T PORI 60D
Place: Mumbal

Date: 30-04-2025



FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MH200EPTC1E88793
Balance sheot at 31st March 2025
{Rs. in millions)
PARTICULARS Mote No. | As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assats
a Property, Plant & Equipment 1 0.15 0.15
b Deferred Tax Assets (net) 2 D45 0.95
Total Nen-Current Assets 0.60 1.10
Current Assets
a Financial Assets
|} Trade Recelvables 3 9304 3111
i} Cach and Cash Equivalents 4 3.08 ]
liiy Other Bank Balances 5 0.21 0.21
v} Loans & 265.52 £33.27
v} Other financial assets 7 0.28 0.22
Current Tax Assets (net) B 258 591
¢ Other Curent Assets 9 3.24 0.02
Total Current Assets 368.33 271.55
TOTAL ASSETS 358,93 27164
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
8 bBquity Share Capital 10 010 0.10
b Other Equity 11 13.22 9.63
Total Equity 13.32 9.73
Liabilities
Non=Current Liabilities
& Provisions 12 0.87 0.50
Total Mon-Current Liabilities 0.87 0.90
Current Liabilities
# Financial Liabifites :
I} Short-Term Borrowings i3 328.36 294,05
ii} Trade Payabies
a) Total outstanding dues of credstors of Micro and Small % -
Enterprises
b} Total gutstanding dues of other than Micro and Small 14 1,22 LES
Enteronses
iii} Other Financial Liabilities 15 9.34 7.50
b Other Current Lisbilities 16 1540 741
¢ Provisions 17 043 0.87
Total Current Liabilities 354.75 262.01
TOTAL 368,93 172.64
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 1-39
The accompanying notes are an integeal part of the Financial Statements,
As per our report of even date
For Mahendra Doshl and Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Flame Facilities Private Limited
Firm Reg. No. 105765W/W10100%
A adns hadh
CA Mahendra K. Doshi Prasad Lad
Partner Director r
M. No. 041316 DIN - 01122234 DIN - 02042603
Flace: Mumbai Place: Mumbal
Date ; 30-04-2025 Gate : 30-04-2025
[ uomn : 2 SO 41316BMTPOT




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MH2008PTC188793

Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

{Rs. in millions}
Mote For the Year Ended
PARTICULARS
MNo. March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Income
Revenue From Operations i8 189.36 127.48
Other Income 19 30.31 28.23
Total Income 219.67 155.70
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 20 177.88 120.27
Finance Costs 21 32.40 2649
Depreciation 1 - .01
Other Expenses 22 361 0.99
Total Expenses 213.89 147.76
Prafit before exceptional items and tax from 578 7.94
continuing operations
Tax expense
Current Tax 1.58 2.01
Short/(Excess) Provisions of earfier years 0.55 0.37
Deferred Tax 0.39 0,90
Total Tax expense 2.52 3.29
Profit for the period from continuing operations 3325 4,66
after Taxes
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or
Loss :
Gain/{loss) on remeasurements of the defined benefits 0.45 0.02
olan
Deferred tax (expenses)/income on remeasurements of (0.11) (0.01)
the defined benefits plan
Total Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 0.34 0.02
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 359 4.67
Earnings Per Equity Share: .
Basic Earnings per Equity Share 26 12542 465.68
Diluted Eamings per Equity Share 32542 465.68
Face value per Equity Share 10 10
Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 1-39

As per aur report of even date
For Mahendra Doshi and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Req. No, 105765W/wW101005

CA Mahendra K. Doshi

Partner

M. No. 041316
Place:Mumbai
Date : 30-04-2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Flame Facilities Private Limited

ﬁ.'?‘

Meeta Prasad Lad
Director

DIN - 01122234

Place:Mumbai
Date : 30-04-2025

galf \rlll')lmgne

D
DIN - 02042603




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MH 2008PTC1BB793
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March, 2025

A, Equity Share Capital
(R=. in millions)

Particulars Amount
Balance as on 1st April 2023 0.01
Chanaes in egquity share capital during the year 4
Balance as at 31st March 2024 001 |
Changes in equity share capital during the year .
Balance as at 31st March 2025 0.01 |
B, Other Equity

(Rs. in millions)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Other
Retained Eamings Comprahensive Fosal
Income
Balance as on 1st April 2023 4.19 0.77 4,96
Profit for the year ended 315t March 2024 4.66 = 4,66
Otver comprehensive income for the year . 0.02 0.02
Balance as at 31st March 2024 8.85 0.78 9.63
Profit for the year ended 31st March 2025 3.25 =
Other comprehensive income for the year = 0.34 0.34
Balance as at 31st March 2025 12.10 1.12 13.22
e s e

As per our report of even date "’ﬁ*\
For Mahendra Doshi and Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Di ,:{"Dﬂ:-__-‘_-‘::a

Chartered Accountants Flame ties Private Limited § w
Firm Rea. No. 105765%W/W 101009 / iy
=

{‘\J\_AQ-LH::;'—“ }fﬂ—k-?—

r-" :

CA Mahendra K. Doshi

eota Prasad Lacd v Dighe
Partner Director rector
M. No. (41316 DIN - 01122234 DIM - 02042603
Place: Mumbal Place:Mumbal
Date : 30-04-2025 > ds Date ; 30-04-2025

UbIN:2 SO 4123163 M T.POK



FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
i CIN - U74950MH200BPTC1BE793
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Rs. in millions)
. Jparticaars sl M
Cash flows from operating activities
Prafit before tax from Continuing Operation 5.78 7.94
Met profit before tax 5.78 7.94
Depreciation and amprtisation * 0.01
Finance costs 12.40 26.49
Inkerest income (30.23} {27.08)
Prowvision for gratusty and Leave Encashment (GuO2} 0.30
Sundry Balance written off 0.58 ’
Aflowance for expected creda boss [0.24) (0.87)
Operating profit before change In working capital 8.26 6.80
Changes in working capital:
Adjustrnents for (increase) | decrease in operating assets:
Trade recelvables (62.27) (2.86)
Loans, other fanncial assets and odher assels [3.26) 0.03
Trade payables (0.44) 0,76
Other financial lizbilities, cther habiities and provisions 9.33 (0.21)
Changes in working capital (56.63) (2.27)
{Less ¢ Tax paid 0.9 (5.26)
|Cash flows generated from/ (used in) operating activities (47.58) {0.74)
Cash flows from investing activities
Loan {given) / recetved back (net} {2.01) -
Proceed from Mon-Current Fxed Deposits [net) = {0.08)
Interest receved - .72
Cash flows ganerated from/ {used in} Investing Activities {2.01) .66
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from)/{repayments of) shest-term borrowings 5167 23.49
|Interest payment - {26.49)
Cash flows generated from) (used in) financing activities 51.87 (3.00)
Met changes in cash and cash eguivalents 2.28 (1.07)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginnisg of the year [refer nota
12} 0.B0 1.87
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of tha year 3.08 0.80
Components of cash and cash equivalents {refer nobe 4)
Cash on hand 0.01 o.o1
In current account with Banks 3.07 0.79
Cash and cash equivalents 35 per stalement of cash Nows 3.08 0.80

The arcompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Mote:

1. The abave Cash Fiow Stetement has been preparad under the "Indirect Method® as set out in the Indian accounting Standard-7
an Cash Flew Slatements.

2. Previous period figures have been regrouped [/ reclassified | rearmanged wherever necessary to make them comparable to those
fo the current year.

1. Recandiiation of financial liabilities farming part of financing activities in accordance with Tnd AS 7 :

Particulars 1st April 2024 Cashflow 3ist March 2025
Biorrowing - Non-Current (inciuding cunrent maturities)
Borrawing - Current

Particulars
[Earrowing - Man-Current (including current maturities)
|Bnrrqm1ng = Currenit
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FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MH200BPTC188793
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

4.1

.1

Company Background

Flame Facllities Private Limited (the “company™) is a Private limited cempany domidled in India and mcorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956.The registered office of the Company is at 154717, Krystal House, Shivaji Fort Co-op. Hsg Socisty, Duncan Causeway Road,
Near Sion Talao, Sion (East) Mumbal- 400022, The company is mainly in the business of Providing Faciliies Management Services , Manpower
Supply Services, Housekeeping Services,

Material Accounting Policies:
This note provides a list of the material sccounting policees adopted In the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Accoonting polices have been consistently applied except where a newly ssued Indlan Accounting Standard is initizlly adopted or a revision to an
existing Indian Accounting Standard requires & change n the accounting policy hithartas in use,

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the ACt) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The Company's financial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2022 were prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2021 (as ammendad) notified under Section 133 of the Act and other provisions of the Act (" Indian GAAP” or ‘Previous GAAR .

The Company has adopted all the relevant Ind AS standards and the first time adoption was carried out in the previous finandal year 2022-23 in
accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indisn Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20014 (IGAAP], which
was the Previous GAAP.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () which & also the Company’s functional currency and all amounts
hawve been rounded off to the nearest millions, unkess otherwise stated.

Basis for Measurement
These finandal statements have been prepared using the historical east convention and on an accrual basis, except for the follewing:

|, Certaln financial assets and liabilities that are gualfied to be measured at Falr value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments);

ii. empleyee benefits where plan asset (s measured at fair value less present value of defined benefit obligations ("DEO”).

The directors have, at the tims of approving the standalone financial statements, 8 reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resounces to continue In aperational existence for the foresesable future. Thus, they have continued to adopt the going concem basis of
accounting in preparing the standalone financal statements

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is
Included In the following notes:

Contingent liabilities: Contingent labiities are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed in the naotes, They are assessed
eontinually to determing whether an outfliow of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an
outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an em previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision Is recognised in the
financial statements of the period in which the change in probabiltty ooours [except in the extramely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made).

Income taxes: Significant judgements are involved In determining the provision for income taxes, induding the amount expectad to be paid or
recovered Inconnection with uncertain tax positions.
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Impairment of financial assets: The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: Key actuarial assumptions wsed for actuarial valuation,
Property, plant and equipment: Useful ife of assat.

Other estimates: The preparation of finandal statements Involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabiities at the dabe of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the
reporting period. Spacifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns,
customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness and current economic trends. IF the financlal condition of a customer deterorates, additional
allowances may be reguired.

Measurement of Fair Value
Some of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures reguire the measurement of fair values, for both finandal and nonfinancial assets and
Habilities.

Falr values are categonsed into different levels in a far value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation technbgues as follows:

= Lewed 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level Z: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labiity, ether directty (l.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Leved 3: Inputs for the asset or Rability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

When measuring the falr value of an asset or a labllity, the Company uses cbsarvable market data as far as possibde. If the Bputs used to
measure the falr value of an asset or a liabfity fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair vakse measurement is categorised
in s entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that i significant to the entire measurement,

Current and non-current classification

Thie Company presents assets and llabilities in the balance sheet based on currentf noa-current classification, An asset is treated as current when
it s:

1. Expected to be mealised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

4, Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a labllity for at least twebve months after the reporting period.

All sther assets are classified as non-current.

A liabikty |s current whean:

1. It is expected to be settled In normal operating oycle;

2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

3, Ik is due to be settled within baelve maonths after the repariing period; or

4, There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement af the liability for at feast twelve months after the reparting period.

Al other labllities are dassified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are dassified as non-current assets and labilities.

The operating cyde ts the time between the acquisition of assats for processing and thelr realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The compary
has identified twelve months as its operating cyde.

Property, plant and equipment

i nt:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less acosmulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
Cost of an tem of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price including import dutles and non-refundable purchase tawes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly atiributable cost of bringing the items to #s working condition for it intended use and
estimated cost of dismantling and removing the Item and restaring the site on which i is located,

Subsequent expenditures refating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that futune

econamic benefits assoclated with these will Aow to the Company and the cost of the Rem can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
costs are recogniset in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eiminated from the
financial statements upon sake or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised In the statement of profit and loss.
Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the canying value or the fale value less cost to sell.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition bo Ind AS, the Company has elacted to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at
1 April 2021 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
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2.8

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

The depreciable amount of PPE (being the gross carrying value less the estimated residual value) is depreciated over Its wseful life as prescribed
in Schedule 11 to the compankes Act, 2013 on diminishing value basis. Depreciation on recognition & provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
such additions, Depreciation on de-recognition or disposal of the same s provided on pro-rata basis till the date of such derecognition or disposal,

The assets residusl value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down Immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount i greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and Josses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit or loss within other
gains/losses.

Advance paid towards the acquistion of property, plant and equipmeant outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances
under other non-current assets and the cost of the assets not put o use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’,

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it i probatde that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be measured relizbly.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in 8 business combination
Is their falr value at the date of acquisition. Subseguent to initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated Impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the pericd in which the expenditure Is incurred,

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are amortised in statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful ives based on undertying contracts where applicable,

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carmying value of adl intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2021
measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed st of mtangible assots.

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverabiity whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purposs of impalrment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determinad on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of thaose from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount Is determined for the CGLU to which the asset belongs,

1If such assets are consdered to be impaired, the impaiment to be recognised i the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by
which the camrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of
profit and lass if there has been a chanae In the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

The carrying amount of the asset ks increased Lo fts revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not éexceed the camying amount
that would have been determined (net of any sccumulated amortisation or depreciation) had no Impaiment koss been recoanised for the asset in
orior years.

Leases
A tontract is; or contains, a kease if the contract conveys the right to control the wse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Company as a Lessae

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a kease, at incéption of a contract, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whather:

1, The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

2. The Company has substantially all of thee economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

3, The Company has the right to direct the use of asset.

A5 the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use-asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease labilicy for all lease
arrangements in which it s 3 lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
shart-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the bease payments as an cperating expense on a straight-ine basis over the term of
the lease.

The of right-of-use assets are inftially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease hability adjusted for any kease payment
made prior to the commencement date of the lease phus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsegquently measured at cost
jess accemulated depreciation and Impairment losses.

Right-to-use assets are depreclated from the conmencement date an a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lzase term and useful ife of the
underying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverabllity whenever events or changes in drcumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recovérable, For the purpase of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (1e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sefl
and the value-in-use) s determined on an individual assef basis unless the asset does not generate cash fiows that are largely Independent of
those from other assets, [n such cases, the recoverable amount i determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGL) te which the assels belong.




The lease liability & initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments, The lease payments sre discounted
using the interest rate implict In the lease or, If not readily determinable, using the incremental bormowing rates in the country of changes its
assessment IF whether it will exerclse an extension or a termination option,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental bamowing rate speclfic to the lease b:*:lng evaluated or for 8 portfolio of leases with
simiar characteristics,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented In the respective Mote and lease payments have been dassified as financing cash
flaws.

The Company as a Lessor
Leases for which the Company ks a lessar s dassifiad as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessae, the contract is dassified as a finance lease. All other leases are dassified as operating leases.

When the Comipany is an intermediate kessor, it accounts for It5 Interests in the head fease and the sublease separately. The sublease is dassified
as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,

For operating leases, rental Income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease,

2.9 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
Investmients In subsidiaries, associates and joint venlures are carrled ab cost/desmed cost applied on transitean to Ind AS, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, Where an Indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment. provision is
recognised, If required immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of swch investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and
carrying amount s recognised in the statement of profit and koss,

2.10 Inventories
Ttems of Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence. Cast of Inventories is ascertained on

FIFD basls, Cost of inventones comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including overheads net of recoverable taxes
incurred in bringing them to their respective present bocation and condition.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three

months or bess, which are subjact to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-tern deposits, as defined above.

2.12 Finandal Instruments
Financlal assets and finandal liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financlal assets are recognised indtially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fabr value through

profit or boss are expensed in profit or loss.
Finandal assets are cassified, at tnltial recognition, as finandial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measuremnent, financial assets are dassified In four categories:

1. Financial assets at amastised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

3, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

4. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FYTOCT)

Financial asset at amortised cost

A finandial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the fellowing conditicns are met:

{. The asset ks held within & business model whose objedtive is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
2. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and nterest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.

After inltial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate [EIR) method,
Amortised cost i calculzted by taking into account any discount of premivm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation s included in finance income in the profit or loss. The |osses arising from impaimment ane recognised in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial asset at FVOCI

A financial asset is dassshied as at the FVTOC of both of the following cntena are met:

1, The obijective of the business moded is achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows and sefiing the financial assets, and

2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Financial asset at FVTPL

FWTPL Is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at amortized cost
or as FVTCCI, s dassified as at FVTPL,

in addition, a company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FWTOCT criterla, as at PVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recogaition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch?), The Company has not designated any debt Instrument as at FYTPL, Financdal assets induded within the FVTPL category are
meacured 3t fair vaiue with all changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.




Equity Investments Other than Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
All equity Investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value and are dassified as FYTPL.

De-recognition

The Company derecogmises financial assets when:

1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

2. The Company has transferred &s rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obBigation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through’ arrangement; and elther

&) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) the Company has naither transfarred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates If
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiafly all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contral of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognisz the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated Eability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the farm of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses impalrment basaed on expected credit koss (ECL) modet to the following:

1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

2. Financial assets measured at fair value throuah other comprehensive income (PYTCCT):

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

1. The 12-manths expacted credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting datel; or

2. Full time expected credit bosses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the finandial instrument).

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade recelvables or contract revenue receibvables,

The Company follows the simplifisd approach permitted by Ind AS 109 = Finandal Instruments- for recognition of impairment loss allowance, The
application of simplificd approach does not reguire the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivable, The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period i recognized as income! expense in the statement of profit and loss,
This amoumnt is reflected unger the head "other expenses” In the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for varicus financlal
Instruments & described below;

Financial assets measured as at amartised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL Is presented as an allowance, ie,, as
an tntegral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amaunt. Until the asset meets
write-off criterla, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carmying amount.

Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts: ECL is presentad a5 a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a Eabllity.

For assessing Increase in oredit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the ebjective of facilitating an analysis that Is designed to enable significant Increases in credit risk to be identified on a timety
basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCT) finandal assets, i.e., finandial assets which are oredit impaired
on purchase orgmation

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract revenue recevables,

Financial llabllities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial kabilites and equity instruments |ssued by the Company are dassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered ito and the definltions of a finandal liabllitv and an eguity instrement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument (s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of it= liabilities. Equity
Instruments are recarded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurament

All fimancial labilites are recognised nitially at fair value and, v the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
rransaction costs.

Tha Company’s financial liabilities indude trade and other payables, bans and borrowings including bank overdrafls.,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial labilibes at falr vahse through profit or bss

2. Loans and borrowings measured on amortised cost basis

3. Finanelal gearantes contracts
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1

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial fiablities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Eabilities held for trading and financial llabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading If they are Incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing In the near term.

Gains or losses on liabdities held for trading are recognised in the profit or Joss.

Financial liabilties designated upon initlal recognition at fadr value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,
and oaly if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For kabilities designated as FUTPL, fair value gaing/ losses attributable to changes in own crodit
risk @are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of profit and loss. However, the company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognizad in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liabdity as at FVTPL.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, Interest-bearing leans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost wsing the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the Statement of proft and loss when the lizbllities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amartisaton & included as finance costs in the Statement of profit and boss.

Financial guarantes contracts

inancial guarantes contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
Incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 8 payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantes
contracts are recognised Initially as & Kability at fair valus, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impaiment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition

A financial Nability Is derecognised when the obligation under the labilty Is discharged or cancelled or explres, When an existing financlal Hability
i replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lisbifty are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification &5 treated as the derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference In the
respective carmying amounts is recognised In the statement of profit and loss,

Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial abilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there s a curmently enforceable kzgal right
1o offset the recognised amouwnts and there is an intention to settle on a net basks, to realise the assets and sette the liabilities simultansously,

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative finandial instrements, such as forward currency Ccontracts, to hedge s foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are Initlally recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subseguently re-
measurad at falr value, Derivatives are carried as finandal assets when the fair value |5 positive and as financial Habilities when the fair value is

niecativee.
Any gains or losses arising from changes In the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash

flow hedges, which &5 recognised in OCT and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basls

adjustrment if & hedaed forecast transaction subseguently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial Eabiity,
PremiumyDiscount, In respect of forward foresgn exchange contract, &5 recognised over the life of the contracts. Exchange differances on such

contracks are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the exchange rate changes. Profit/Loss on cancellation /
renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as Income/expense,

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:

Prowiclons are recognised when the Company has a present obfigation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, & ks probable that an
outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to sattle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursemant is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision &
presented In the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

1f the effect of the time value of money & matenal, provisions are discounted wsing 8 current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the llabillty, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passane of time & recoghised as a finance cost.

Contingent Rabillty 1= disclosed In the case of:
1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

2. A present obligation arising from the past events, when na rellable estimate Is possible;
3. A passible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outfiow of resources is remotie.
Provisions, contingent fiabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Taxes

Current Tax

Current incorme tax assets and lizbiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the tasation authorities, based on
the rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity operates and generates taxable
Incomae.




2.1

2.2

Current tax items are recognised In correlation to the underlying transaction efther In OCT or directly In equity,

Management periodically evaluates positions taken In the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liahilitles and thelr comesponding carrying amaunts for the finandal reporting purpesas.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:
1, deductible temporary differences;

2, the carry forward of unused tax losses: and

3, the carry forward of unused tax credits,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avalizble to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utifised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that It has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax assat to be recoversd.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expécted ta apply in the year when the asset s realised or the labdlity &5
settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss s recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income of in
equity). Deferred tax lenvs are recognised in cormelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

Defarred tax assets and deferred tax lisbilites are offset if & legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabdlities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily fram manpower services which comprises of fadlity management service, secutty service and other
manpower based solutions.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties to the
contract, the parties to eontract are ecenmitted to perform thelr respective obligations under the contract, &nd the contract ks legally enforcaabla.
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of contred of promised products or services (“performance obligations™) to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company has received ar expects to recelve In exchange for these products or services ("transaction price”). When
there Is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until sech uncertainky is reschved,

The contract with customer for staffing services, generally containe a single performance obligation and revenue is measured at the felr value of
the consideration recelved or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and exchiding Bxes or duties colleced on

behalf of the government.
The Company’s contracts may Indude variable consideration including discounts and penalties which are reduced from revenues and recognised

baszed on an estimate of the expected payout refating to these considerations,

Revenue from manpower services is recognised over time singe the customer simultaneousty receives and consumes the benefits. The involcing
for these services is either based on cost plus 2 service fee or fred fee model,

The Company has conchuded that it is the principal in all of s revenue arrangements since B is the primary obligorand has pricing latitude which
estahblishes controd before transferring products and services to the customer,

The Company's receivables are rights to consideration that are unconditional, Unbdlled revenues comprising revenues in excess of Inwoidng are
dassified as financial asset when the right to consideration & unconditional and Is due only after a passage of time. Unbilled revenues are
presented under Trade receivables, while invoicing In excess of revenues are classified as unearmed revene,

Other Incoma

Other mcome comprises primarily interest income on deposits, dividend income and gain/ (loss) on disposal of finandial assets and non-financial
assets. Inberest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend income & recognised when the right to receive payment is
estabdished.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there 15 reasonable assurance that the grant will be recetved and all attached conditions will be
cornplied with, AH the grants related to an expense item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the pericds that the related costs,
far which it is intended to compensate, are expensad.

Employes Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to emplovees in respect of wages and salaries in the periad the rolated service & rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid i exchange for that service, Short-term employee benefits are measured oh an
yndiscounted basis as the related service Is provided.




2.2

.1

.2

Compensated absences

The employess of the Company are entitbed to compensated absences, The employees can carry forward @ portion of the unutilised acoumulating
compensated absences and utilise It In future perods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment, The Company records an
abligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employes renders the sendces that increases this entitfernent. The obligation is
determined by actuarial valuation perfarmed by an external actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be avalled or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as
short tarm employes benafits and those expacted ta be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year are treated as other long
term emplovee benefits,

Defined contribution plan

Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only oblsgation s to pay a fived amount with no obligationta pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The Company makes specified monthly contributions tewards Employes
Provident Fund to Gowernment administered Provident Fund Scheme which B a defined contribution plan. The expenditure for defined
contribution plan 15 recognised as expense during the period when the employee provides service,

Defined benafit plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employess, at retirement or
terminatian of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company’s gratuity fund is managed
by Ufe Insurance Corparation of India (LIC). The present valuz of gratuity obBgation under such defined benefitplan s determined based on
actuarial valuations carried out by an external actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Company recognises the net obligation of a
defined benefit plan in its balance sheet

as an asset or Hability.

The Company recogniseas the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expensa in the statement of profit and loss:
- Service costs compinsing ourfent service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtafiments and non-routine settlements; and
= Met interest expense or income

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Further, the statement of profit and loss does not indude an expected
return on plan assets, Instead, net interest recognised in the statement of profit and loss Is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benef®t labiity or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the
discount rate is recognised as part of remeasurement of net defined Bability or asset through other comprelensive income,

fe-measurement comgrising actuarial gains or fosses and return on plan assets (excdeding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit labdlity) arenot reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods,

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that aecessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur, Borrowing costs constst of interest and other casts that the Company incurs i connection with the: borrowing of funds,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are réported using the indirect methad, whereby profit for the period Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or payments and Rem of inceme or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash Aows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating segments, segment information has been discosed in the consolidated financial statements of the

Company and na separate disclosure on segment infermation & given in these standalone financial statements.

2,20 Foreign currency transactions and balances

1.2

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency wsing the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the respective
transactions. Forelgn-curr noy denominated monetary ascets and llabilities are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates in effect

at the regorting date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and such translation of

manetary assets and liabilities denominatad In foreign currencies are generally recognised in the statement of profit and boss,

Non-monetary assets and labltles denominated in & foreign currency and measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevakent at
the date when the fair value was determined. Mon-monétary assets and habilities denominated in @ foreign currency and measured at histosical
cost are transiated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis, This
includes changes in the fair value of forsign exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or loss.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable ta equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of eguity shares outstanding during the pericd, Earnings conssdered In-ascertalning the Company's eamings per share is the net profit for
the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax therets for the perlod. The weighted average number of equity shares
sutstanding during the period and for all perieds presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a cerresponding change in resources,




L L2

2.2

For the purpose of caiculsting diluted eamings per share, the profit or koss for the period attributabie 1o equity shareholders and the weighted
average rumber of shares outstanding during the periad s adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Mon-current assets (or disposal group) held for sale and discontinued operations:
Nan-curent assels and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lpwer of their carrying value and fair vatue less costs to sell.

fssets and disposal groups are cassified as held far sale IF their carrying value will be recovered through 2 sale transaction rather than thraugh
cantinuing use. This condition is only mel when the sale is highly probable and the asset, or dispasal group, |s available for Immediate sala in lts
present condition and is marketed Tor sale at a price that ks reasonable i relation to &S curment falr value.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings pershare,thewdturmfnrmepemdammtahhmaqulw shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares cutstanding during the period s adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Where 8 disposal group represents @ separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or 1 part of a single coordinated péan to
dispose of a separate major line of Business or qeographical arca of operations, then It s treated a5 2 discontinued aperation. The post-tax profit or
loss of the discontinued cperation together with the gain or loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as @ single amount in the statement of
prafit and loss, with all prior perieds being presiented on this basis.

Recent pronouncements =

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules & issuad fram time to time. On March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified amy new standard or amendments to the existing standards
apphicatie ko the company,



FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U74990MH200BPTC1B8793

Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(ANl amouwnts are In milllons of Rs, unless otherwise specified)

1 - Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Carrying Value Vehicles Tatal
Balance as on 01-04-2023 3.35 3.35
Additions = =
Disposal * =
Balance as at 31-03-2024 3.35 3.35
Fuddiicns = -
Disposal - -
Balance as at 31-03-2025 3.35 3.35

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as on 01-04-2023 3.18 3.18
Depreciation for the Year 0.01 0.01
Disposal
Balance as at 31-03-2024 3.20 3.20
Depreciatian for the Year - =
| Disposal - -
|Balance as at 31-03-2025 3.20 3.20
Net Carrying Value
As at 31-03-2024 0.15 0.15
As at 31-03-2025 0.15 0.15

The Vehicles have been fully depreciated in the previous finandal year remaining
srap value and hence no depreciation has been charged In the current finacial

year,




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - UT4950MHIODAFTCLEBT S

Hotes to Financial Statements for the year ended J1st March 2025

Al amaunis are In ralliena of Ra. unless ctheraiss speciied|

L. Deferred Tax Assats

Particulars Mg at March | As at March 31,
31 2015 2024

Defered Tax Assets (MNet)h L] 055 |

Total .45 £.55 |

Tha Compary offeets tax assets and labiites if and only f & has a lagally endorceable right bo st off current s Adsels and current Lax lsbilities and the

deferned tax sveets and defered tax Bahiites relate o income taesy evied By the same e authority,

Significant mandgement jijamant & requirsd in detenmining prosizion far income G, defered income i aseety and Eablites and mooverablity of
dufarred Income tEx assets. The recoverabilty of deferred income @Bx assets & based on esbmates of toable income by each Juriscotion n which the
reevant endity operates and the peried over which deferrid income tax assets will be recovesend,

Defarmead thx movamant during tha yaar |

A5 st March | As at March 31,
Farticulars 11, 2028 Heme
Delerred Tax ASSEU[LRbINY ), 3t e Deginang [ [E 5
i - Deferred Tao Asset/[Lability) on tming differences {054} [0.91]
(3} duse to diferanoe i depreciaton 1L E2) (0,153
() s b disllowance of expenses 1043} (0,763
() due ko timing diferance of obfer ema
[ (ED
Mot Deferrad Tax Assot(Labilty), at the end [X5] 0.95 |
Dalerrod Tax cradied) (debtod) to Statnment of Profit & Loss {o.50) 0.81
3. Trade Receivables
A5 at March | As at March 31,
Particulars L 1, 2025 2024
i) Trade Recaivables - Billed
Unsecured, eonsidered good 4526 3142
Total %20 FEET]
\Lpsis: Afguianog for Croct bapees. {0L06) {0.30)
Total Trade Raceivables - Bilked [A) 49,20 [TET]
{ii} Trade Receivables - Unbilled
ntilier 43,85
Less; Alowanon for expected oredt s —
Total Trade Recalvables - Unbilied (B) 43.85 -
Toal 2354 AL

Thi amousnt of oss allowares (Ietane oxpectod crodit oss) has boon recognized under the Smplfied apgecach for trade reosvalie and hanca break-up
of trade receivable into ‘ugnificant increase o credit nsl’ and 'tredRt impaited’ has not been declosed separabily,

Trada Raceivable Ageing
Ff 3024-25
[Eategory Thutstanding for follawing periods from due date of 3
& manths - 1 ; Mare than

Unbdllad < & monkhs yoar i-2 years. 3-3 years 3 yaars Total

-:I] wlipulrdl Trade Apcevabies - Corskdensd Good 4385 45,78 .46 0.00 - ool $3.10
{005 0,57} 5 TL.03) _[C.D6])
mmlﬂhh‘l 41.85 4.8 [K¥] - - = 93.04
FY 2023-24
[Eatugery (&) Sinvg Tor i periogs from dua data of payment
& manths - 1 Maore than
nbilked =6 -

u months: i 12 yaars. 2-3 ymars 3 Total
i) Undisputed Trade Recsvatdes - Comtidenad Good - nx ooy = - L4
Lot Alorwnnee for experted oredi o = .l [0.30})
(et receivables 2 1.5 817 : 3L
4. Cash And Cash Eguivalents
PARTICULARS &5 at March | As at March 3L,

1. 2029 2004
Balances with Banks in Cunmsnt aooousts 37 0.79
Cash on hand o 0.1
Total 308 080




5. Dther Bank Balances

PARTICULARS Ax at March | As ot March 31,
31,2025 2034

Bark deposis with maburgy within 12 meonths® ol o.21
Total o3l o1
*Bank deposits are hikd 35 margin money agaist bank guarantes
&, Loams - Current

¥z ot March | A3 ot March JL, |
PARTICULARS 3, 2025 2024
Unsocured. considersd good - repayable on demand
Lioan o othars 081 20091
Entesest accured and receivabie on above 5730 436
Total 208,53

Thz above laan B wnsecursd aml 1S Carryng 8 rafe of mierest of 17%

Thana |5 0 loan given to Promotocs, Directors, KMPs and Aelated Parties which & repayable on demand of oan without specifying tems of periad of

TR,

7. Other financial aisats - currant

fia ot March | As ot March J4, |
PARTICULARS 31, 2035 2024
Sacurity Denosis
~ptifier Bhan refated partes 026 622
Total (¥ 5.2
8. Current tax assats (net)
s At Harch | As at March 31, |
PARTICLILARS 31, 25 2024
Advanoe Taxl TG (et 1.3 501
Total 298 551
(a) Reconciliation of Income Tax Provision provided for | As at March | As at March 31,
the current financial year 31, 2025 2024
Incams tax recognisad in statement of Profit and loss
Current tan 158 2y
Defarred Tax 039 G
Shoit/[Excess) Proviskns of sarker years 055 -
Tax expense for the year .52 182
[ & ] Profit before tax dusing the year 5.4 T84
Fabe of tagation 25,17 26,00
\Corvpubid Tax seponse 145 06
Tax effectof ©
Decalowances of expense . .
Ot Ackjustment PR E] (0L05)
Amount of Tax Provisionon [ A ] 1.58 .01
{ Incremental] § Reversal of Defered Tax Assets [ERL] .50
Defemed Tax provision [ 8 ] .39 B.90
[ Toral Inoomee Cae expenses Tecognsed in satement of Prolit and
foss A + B] 197 e
34.10% 6.7 3%
) Amounts recog d in other comgpret income | As &t March | As at March 31,
3, 2025 2024
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Hemeasuraments of the dafined benefit plans .45 0oz
Tax impact an the above (LA LS {1
] 034 0
4, Other Current ASSals
PARTICULARS A5 at March | Asat March 31,
==l 312025 1024
Frepoid Experdes LBl Bl
Advanca to supoliers B3 [ EiH]
Aduanon acarst ealary a3 E
GET inpul ohedi L37 =
Takal 3.34 0oz




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MHI00RFTCIERTI2

Matas to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31t March 2028

{ Al amounls. ara in millions of #s, unless olhersse specified )

10, Share Capital
[PARIECULANS AsatMarch | As 3t March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Authorized Shane capital

10,000 (PY 10,0000 Equity Skares of ks, 10/ each .10 010

218 0,10

Isswed, Subscribed and Fully Pajd-ip share

Canital

10,000 (FY 10,0004 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ sach cip b0
Tatal 0.10 0.10 |

The Company has single dass of equity shares, Each shareholder i5 eligible for one vote per shang held, The dhvidend proposed
by the Board of Directars & subjact o the approval of the sharenoldars, In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
efigible to received the remaining assets of the Company after distribation of all prolorential amounts, In proportion to their

shanchoiding,

101 The Reconciliathon OF The Number OF Shares Dutstanding is sot out bollow :

PARTICULARS As ot March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares (Im Rs.) Mo, of Shares {In Rs.}
Equity shares &t the Geconing of ha year 10,000 [XT) 10,000 0.4
Aokd: Shares ssued during e vear - - = -
Equity shares at the and of the yoar 10,000 0,10 10,000 0.10
10,2 List of persons holding more than § % shares in the Company :
PARTICULARS ch 31, 2024 |

Mo. of Shares| % of holding | Mo, of Shares| % of holding
Krystal Inteomated Sorvices i Lid 10000 100% 10,000 100
Equity shares at tha end of the year 10,000 100% 10,0009 1008 )
10,3 Dsclosure of Sharcholding of Promoters ;|

A Az ot March 31, 20
Mame of Promoburs Mo af Shares (In Rs.} Ho of Shares {In As.}
\Equity shares with voting rights
Krystal Integrated Services Pyt Lid 10,000 TR 10,000 | 10
Total 10,660 0.1 10,6060 1 0.0
11. Othar Equity
[ParTICULARS As at March | As Bt March
31, 3028 31, 2024

| Retained Earnings
A5 por lost Balance Sheet 963 4,96
Less: Adjustments related to bransdtion lo Ind A5
Aod: Profit f{Loss) for the Year .25 .66
Add: Oiher comprehensie income: for the year .34 1K=
et Balance 13.22 963
Total :J..E 9,63
Brief description of other equity:

Retabned Earnings: This Reserve represents the oumulative peofits of the company. This mesere is a free reserve and can be

ibilised for any purpose as may be required.




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U745990MH200BPTCLESTSD

Hotes to Financial Statoments for the year ended 31st March 2025
specifiad)

(Al amounis are i millons of B, unless othenwisa

12, Prowviskens = Non Current

PARTICULARS As at 31 March As at 31 March
2025 2024

Provision for employes bapafits

i Prowiskon for Gretulty (Refer Note Mo, 23) L8 040

Total [ K b 050 |

13. Borrowings = Current

PARTICULARS As at 31 March As at 31 March
1015 2014

Unsecured:

From Holding Company 12036 44,09

Fram Othears = 5

(Total E2R.00 2A0.00

i,

ncluded in Note 33.

14. Trade Pavables

12,1 Unsecured Loans from Holding Company s repayable an demand and cimying interest rate of 125

12.2 Informmation about the company's exposune to inenest rate, foreign cumency and Mguidey risks i

PARTICULARS As at 31 March As at 31 March
1028 024

Total cutstanding dues of Mioa Enterprises and Small - -

Enterorises

Total outstanding dues of cediters obher than Mioo 1.3 1.65

Enteroeises and Small Entercrises

Total 1,132 1.65 |

Unger the Micro, Smad and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came o Force from
Ctober 2, X06, certain declsures are required to be made relating to Micrs, Small & Medium

Enterprizes, as foliows:

Particulars

Az at 31 March

As at 31 March
024

The prinopal amount and the interest due theneon
remaining unpaid to any supplier 2z at the end of each
|acoounting weare

|- Prinppal amount dus ko micra and small enterprses
= Interast duss to Micro, Small And Medium Enterprses

= The amount of interest paid by the buyer In berms of
section 16 of the MSMED Ad J006 aliong with the
amounts of the payment made to the suppliés bewond the
mppointad day during each accounting year

- The amaunt of interest due and payabla for the period
of delay in making payment (which have beon paid but
beyond the appointed day during Ehe perkod) bl without
mdding thie Interest specfied undar tha MSMED Act 2004,

- The amount of Interest accrued and remaining wnpaid

it the end of sach sccountng perod,
- The amount of further nterest remaining due and
payable even in te suceeding years, untl such date

small enterprise for the purpose of dealiowanoe o 8
dedictible exgpendiure under dsction 73 of the MSMED
Lbrt W0

whon fhe ilerest duss as shove are actually paid B0 the)

*Oupas 10 Mio, Sl and Mediem Enterprises mcluding interast have been detesmined o M exiant
such parties hawe been dentified by the Management and on the basts of information collected in this

regard. This has been relled upan by the auditors.

Trade Payables Ageing

FY 2024-25
Ourtstanding for following penods from doe date of payment
Gty Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years ool Tatal
yEars
fij MSME - - - - -
[ii] Oehiars 063 0.36 0.00 - L2
Tatal 0.83 0.38 0.0a - 123




FY 3023-24

Outstanding for following perods from due date of payment

oy Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 e Wi 3 Total
YEArs
{1} MSME . = - - 5
i) Qithers 101 .58 0.00 0.0a 1.55
Total 1.01 0.58 0.00 0.06 1.565
15. Other Current Finandal Liabilities
PARTICULARS As at 31 March As at 31 March
2025 2024
Fayable o Employées 9.19 745
Cnher Liabilities 015 005
Tokal !I_H ?&
16, Other Current Liabilities
PARTICUILARS As at 31 Marnch Az at 31 March
2028 2024
Swatutory Dues pavable 680 7.81
FAdvance from oustomerns B.50 -
Total 15.40 7.91 |
17, Pravicons - Currént
Particulars s at 31 March | As at 31 March
2015 2024
Pravison for Employes banefits
Prowision for Gratufty {Refer Note Mo, 231 0.25 nay
Prowision for Leave Encashement Q.18 LLED
Total E'-E b.E7




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U74990MH2008PTC188793

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Al amounts are in milkiong of Rs. unizss othenwise specified)

18. Revenue From Operations

PARTICULARS For the year 2024-25 | For the year 2023-24
Manpawer & related services
Contract Staff Services 175.84 114.02
Housekeeping Servica Fadillty Management Service 13.52 13.46
Total 189.36 127.48
19. Other Income
PARTICULARS For the year 2024-25 | For the year 2023-24
Income From Financial Assols
Interest Income on Loans 30,23 27.07
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 0,01 0.01
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.06 -
Balance writben back - 1.15
Total 3031 2823
20. Employes Benefits Expense
PARTICULARS For the year 2024-15 | For the year 2023-24
Salary & Wages 160,36 103.87
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 12.95 11.58
(Refer hote Mo, 23) s 2
Leave Waoes in 124
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.66 1.48
Total 177.B8 120.27
21. Finance Cost
PARTICULARS For the year 2024-25 | For the year 2023-24
Interest on Loans 32.40 26,49
Total 32.40 2649
22. Other Expenses
PARTICULARS For the year 2024-15 | For the year 2023-24
Auditors Remuneration (Refer Note Na, 22.1) .20 0.25
Bank Charges 0.03 0.02
Provision/ (Reversal) for Expedied Credit Loss {0.24) {0.B7)
Intemat Charges 0.00 0.01
Labour License Expenses 001 0.01
Contract Labour Charges 001 0.04
Professional & Consuttancy Charges .10 0.99
Printing & Stationéry 004 0.03
Rates and Taxes 0,19 0.07
Sundry Balance written off 0.58 .
Vehide Inszrance and maintenance 019 .35
Misc. Expanses 0.02 -
Material Purchases 033 0.10
Festival Expanses 0,10 =
Taotal 3.61 0.99
— .
Note - 22.1 : Payment to Auditor's (excluding GST)
Particulars For the year 2024-25 | For the year 2023-24
= Slatutory awdit fees 0.15 0.20
- Tax Audit Fees 0,05 0,05




FLAME FACILITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U74930MHZD0BPTCIBETII

MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t Manch 2025
{8 arnounts are I millans of RS, unless etherwise specified)

Note 23 : Employes benefit expenses
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India,

A. (1) Defined Contribution Plans:
The contributions payable o these plans Ly the Company ane at rates specified in the rubes of the schames,

Thie Comspany recognised fallowing amounts for provident and other fund contributioas in the Statement of Profit and Less:

For the year For the year
| 2022-34
Provident Fund 12,06 10,73
=1 329 2.90

(i) Defined Benefit Plan :

Thie Company has a dafined benefit gratuity plan in India, gaverned by the Paymient of Gratulty Act, 1972, [t eotithes a0 employee, who has rendered
at least five years of continuous service, to gratulty at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of senace or part thereaf in excess of
six months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the emplwyee concemed. These defined benefit plans expase the Company to actuarial nsks,
such &% longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

A, Assets and Habilities related to employee benefits
Basad on the actuarial valuation obtzined in this respact, the follgwing table sats out the status of the gratulty plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company's financial statements &5 at bakance sheet dake:

|Particulars A1-Mar-25]  31-Mar-24
Fair value of plan asset E -
Fresent value of obligations {112} 1,18
Asset [ (Linbility) recognised in (1.12) (1.18)
Balance Sheet

Man-current {0.57) (0.90)
Current {0.25) {027

B. Movement in net defined benefit liability

| Particulars |31 Mar 2025] 31 Mar 2044
Opening balance 1.1 0.90
Included In profit or loss
Current sernvioe cost 0.32 024
Interest cost (income) 007 005

A 1,57 1:20
Included in OCI

Remeasurament loss (galn):
Actuariad kass (gain) arksing fram:

Financial assumptions 0.04 001

Experience adjstment {0.43) (3,03}
B (0.45) (0.02)

|Gk balance (A+BY 1,12 1.18

1st Following  2nd Following Following  4th Following H:“mlq g

3rd
Particulars i genh Vi Vae . Years 6 To
gar 10 |
31 March 2028 0.25 013 0,11 0.12 .10 0.41
31 March 2024 0,27 .13 0.12 3,10 012 0.44

C. Befined benefit obligations

The attrition rale vanes from 1% to 55% {PY: 1% to 55%) for various age groups,
Mortality rate varias from 0.09% to 1.15%, Published rates under Indian Assured Lives Mortality Uit Table.

li. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possble changes st the roparing date o ooe of te relevant actussal assumplicns, halding other sssumptions: constant, would have
affacted the defined benefit obligation by the armouwnts shown below.

Farticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2034
Increase Decreage | Increase  Decrease
Rate of decounting (0.5% movement) 103 L6 L15 121
Rate of salary morcase (0.5% movemeant) 1.15 1.08 1.21 L1§
Rate of employes tunover {10% mowement) 1.10 115 Li3 1,24

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distrbution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of Wse
sensitivity of the assumptions shown,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
{All amounts are in milans of Rs. unless otherwise spedfied)

Note 24 ; Capital Commitments -
Estimated amount of contracts rearmining o be executed on capital account and provided for {net of Advances) Rs. il

HNote 25 : Continaent lability
There are no Claims against the company not ackrowledged as Debits,
Contingent Lizbditios on account of disputed demand of Income s against which the Company has prefered as appeal is s, Nil,

Note 26 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Bagic earning per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atfributable to equily holders by tha
welghted average number of equity shares outstanding dising the year.

Dibuted EPS amounts are caloidated By dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted averege number of equity shanes that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares info
equity shares,

No. | Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
aj Basic Earnings per share
Profi after Tax attributabis to equity shareholders 3.25 4,056
welghted average number of equity shares oultstandeng 10, 10,000
Basic Eamings per share (in Rs. Per share) Fl 365.68
= Piluted Earning per share
Prafit after Tax attributable ko equity shareholders 3.15 4.66
welghted average number of equity shares cutstanding 10,000 10,000
Céhsted Earning per share {in Rs, Per share) 335.42 465.68

*®

Mo amount t5 required to be spent by the Comgany towards corparate sodial responsibility under Section 135 of the Companses Act, 2013,

Note 28 ; Seament information

The Cempany is required to discloss sagment information based on the ‘management approach’ a2 defined In Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, which
t5 how the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Comipany’s performance and aBocates resources based on the analysis of the vanous
performance indicators. In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company 85 8 whole a5 the Comgany & primarily engaged in
the bessiness of rendering manpower and securily senaces in India, Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company, The
information &5 regused under Ind AS 108 is available dinectly from the financial staternents, kence no separate disclosures have been made,

Note 29 : Other Statutory Information:
(i) The company does nat have any Banami property, where any progeeding has been initiated or pending against the company far halding any Benami
praperty.

(i) The comgany does mot have any transactons with companies struck off,
(i) The company has not traded o inested in Crypto curency ar Virtual curtency during the financial year,
(v} The coompany does not ave any charges or sat=sfaction which &5 yet t be registered with ROC beyand the statutory period.

{v) The company s not advanced or keaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{les), induding foreign entibies (Intermadiacies] with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or inwest in other persons or entities identified in sny manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Uttimate
Beneficiaries) o

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Uitimate Beneficaries

{vi) The company has nol received. any fund from ary person(s) or entity(les), including forelgn entities {Funding Party) with the undarstanding
[whither recordad i writing or stharwise) that the company shall:

(&) directhy or indirectly lend or invest in other persong or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Litimate
Beneficlaries) or

(b} provide any guarartes, securiby or the like on behall of the Uitimate Benaficiaries

{wii} Thi compary does nat have any such transaction which is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclsed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as; search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961,

{will} The company has not been declased as Wikl defaulter by any Banks, Financial institutian or Other lenders;

(i) The Company 15 in compliance with the number of layers prescribed undir clause (B7) of section 2 of the Companies A, 2013 read with the
Companles {Restriction on number of Layvers) Rules, 2017 {as amended).
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Mote 30 - Dislosure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

The company is malnly in the business of Providing Facilities Management Services, Housekeeping Services and

contract staff services.

The following table presents the dissggregated revenue from contracts with customers:

Sales by type of service

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Housakeeping Service/ Facility Management Service 13.52 13.46
Contract Staff Services 175.84 114.02
Total 189.36 127.48

Sales by performance obligations

Particulars Manpower and related services
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue by time of recognition
At @ paint In time - -
|Over the period of time 189,36 127.48
Total Revenue 189.36 127.48
Revenue by geographical market
India* 189.36 127.48
189.36 127.48
*Company operates inlo single geographical market, ie, Inda.
Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer
Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price 191.18 127.51
Adjustments made to contract price on account of ;-
a) Discounts / Rebates [ Incentives . .
b} Sales Returns /Credits [ Reversals (179} {0.03)
Revenue from contract with customer 189.39 127.48




. Contract balances:

The following table provides information about category of trade receivables:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
IBilled 48,20 3111
Unbilled 43.85 -
Total 93.04 31.11
The following table provides information about unbilted revenue from contract with customers
Particulars 31st Mar 2025 3i1st Mar 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year - .
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 189.36 +
Less; Involced during the year [145.52) -
Less : Loss allowance recognised during the year - z
Balance as at the end of the year 43.85 -

Contract liabilities

This includes advances received from the customer towards sale of goods. Advance collections are recognised
when payment is received before the related performance obligation i satisfied. Revenue is recognised once the
performance obligation Is met l.e, upen transfer of control of promised goods to customers,

Contract liabilities

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Opening contract liabilities

Less: amount recegnised in revenue

Add: amount received in advance during the year
Closing contract liabilities

B.50

B.50
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Note 31 : "Disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) on
“Related Party Disclosures” are given below

Related party relationships, transactions and balances (as identified by the management)

A. Nature of relationship
Holding Company
Krystal Integrated Services private Limited

Key Management Personnel Designation
Mrs. MNeeta Lad Director
Mr. Sanjay Dighe Director
Ms, Saily Lad Director
Mr. Shubham Lad Director

B. Transactions and closing balance with the Related Parties are as under:

Sr. No _[Particulars 2024-325 2023-24

1 |Interest expenses
- Krystal Integrated Services Private Limited 32.40 26.49

2 Loan taken
- Krystal Integrated Services Private Limited BH.48 53.46

3 Loan repaid
- Krystal Integrated Services Private Limited 33.37 29.97

Balance outstanding at the end of year:
1 |Loan Taken
- Krystal Integrated Services Private Limited 304.80 244.09
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Mote 32 : Disclosures on Financial Instrument
Financial instruments = Fair values and risk management

A, Accounting classification and fadr values
The following able shows the camying amounts and fai values of financlall assets and financial Rabilities, inchuding thesr levals in the fair velue hierrchy. Tt does. not inchade fisr
walue nformation for financial assats and fnancial Rabilitkes: mot mearsured at fair value i B carrying amount i @ reasonable spproximation of fair value,

| Carrying amount Fair walyo
31 March 2025 FYTPL FVTOCT Aot sed Torkal Lewel 1 Laval 2 Laval 3 Total
Corst
Financial assets
Cash and cosh eguivalents and Bank . ~ 33 L8 - - 329 129
[bakances
Trasde recelvables - - 93,04 53.04 - - 9004 93.04
Current financal Assets - Loans - - 265.52 265,52 - - 265.52 6552
Other financlal assets 0.26 0.26 - - 0.26 0.26
= = 36211 362,11 = - 36211 362.11
Financial llabllides
\Current bomwings - - 328.35 32836 - - 328.35 312836
Trade payables - - 122 L2 . - 1.22 1.22
Cther finencial Eablties . - 934 9.34 . . 934 9,34
= = 33801 | 33891 2 = 33891 | 338,91
_ Canmying amount Fair value
31 March 2024 FVTPL FYTOCT Amartised Total Level 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Yotal
Financial assets
Caahy and cash equivalents and Bank - - 1.01 LoL . - 101 Lol
balancas
Trade raceivables - - in 31,11 - - n 3
Current financial Assets - Loars . . 2317 133.27 . s 23,27 83337
Other financial assets 0.22 0.22 3 = .22 0.22
= 1 255,51 26562 2 = 26561 | 26561
Financial Habilities
Cument borrowings - - 244,09 4409 - - 244,09 244,09
Trade payables - - 165 1.65 - - 1.65 165
Other financial Babilithes = - 7,50 1% = ud .30 750
- - 253.14 153,24 - - 253.24 | 251.74

B, Messurement of falr values (Key inputs for valuation technigues) @

1. Listed Bauity Irvestments (other than Subsidenes and Joint Venture) : Queted Bid Prica on Stock Exchange {Level L)

2. Forward contracts @ Farward sxchange rate s taken from Forign Bxchange Dealers Association of Indsa (FEDAT) (Level 2)
3, Valuation technigues and significant unchsenable inputs: Not applcable (Level 3)

C. Transters betwean Levels 1 and 2
There ware nd transfer from Level 1 ko Leved 2 or vice versa in any of the reporting pariods.

D. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the followna risis anisng from fmancial nstruments:
= Credit risk ©

= Liguidity risk ;- ancd

= Market risk

1. Risk managemeant framework
The Compaty's board of directors has overall responsiility for the estabishment and cversight of the Company's risk management framework, The board of dirctors s
responsible for developing and monforng the Company’™s rsk management policies.

The Company’s risk management polckes amn established to dentily and snalyse the rsks faced by the Comgany, to set appropriate risk |imits and controds and to manitor risks #nd
adbarence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulary o mflect changes in market condtions and the Compamy's activithes. The Company, through its
tsinng and management standamds end procedures, alms to maintzin a disciplined and constructive: controll ervirenment in which all employess understand theic roles and
oioligatians,

Management versess and montors compllance with the company's risk manegement policies and procedures and reviews the adeguacy of the sk management framework in
refation to the rsks faced by the Company.

it Cresdit risk
Credit tisk s the risk of financial koss 1o the Comgeny I a customes or counterparty to a firancial Instrument Fails to mest ks contractiiel obligations and arses principally frem the
Company's receivables from customars and investments in debt securties.

The camying smaunt of following financial assets represents the maximuih credil exposure:

Trade and other receivables
The Company has dischieed concentration of customsr undes segment regorting in Consclidated Financial Statement,

The Company's exposure to credit sk i nfiuenced mainky by the indhidual chamcteristics of each customer, However, fanagernent also considers the faciors that may influence
the credit rigk of s customer base, ncuding the default risk of the industry and country in which customers aperate.

The Company has estblished a oredit policy under which each new customer s anakysed indwidually for creditwerthiness befone the Companys: standand payment and delivery
termis and conditions ane offered, The Company's review incldes edermal mtings, il they are pvailable a0d In some cases bank refarences. Sale imits ame established for sach
CUSEDATIST,

&5 per simgplified approatty, the Coenpany makes provision of expected credit losses on trade recetvables In accondance of thie reguirernent of Ind A5 109,




s reporting date, tha maximuim exposiiss o eredif rick for trade and other receaiies by geographic region was as follaws:

Carrying amount (in #s.}
Particuines Iish March | 31st March

025 2024
Tl 9304 i1
Other reglons® - -
03,04 3L

Managemant believes that the unimpaired amaunts thal ane past dues ans sUil coliectible i full, Desed o historical pawmant behavicur and exterive analysis of customer credit
risk condusted by managemant.

Thaz moweemient in the sBowsnce for impairment in respect of trade and other receivabiles dusing the year was as follows:

31st March | 31st March
Particulars 2015 2024
Opening balance 0.30 4.06
Prowision for recelvables impainment -
Placehaties written off during the yaar
a8 uncoflectible - (2.88)
Prowislon releasad during the vear (0,34 {0.87)
Clasing balance 0.06 .30

Cash and cash eauivalents
The Company mmmuuunwﬂnmmummmwwmmmmMmmmmammhwummeaﬂMW
their credit-worthiness en an on-gaing basis,

Dervatives
The dherdvatives deals are done with AD cateqory banks in OTC market and registered brokers i ETOD market.

AL, Ligquidity risk

Licpadity sk s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligstions associated with is fnancial Babilties thatl are sttbed by delvering cash or anather
Tnancial asset. The Company’s approach to manaqging houidlly i o enswre, s far as possibde, that it will Fave sulficlent Bouidity 1o meat its Babilities wien Bey are due, undes
bath normal and stressed conditions, without incuring unacceptable losses or nsking damage o the Company's reputation.

The Company uses servico-based costing to cost & products and services, whech assists & in monitaring cash flow requirements and aptimizng &s cesh retun on nvesstments, The
Cosmpany monitors the kvl of expected cash inflows en trade and other recalvables ogether with expacted cash outflows on trade and ather payables.

Exposure to Bouidity rish
The following are the memaining contrachiel maturlest of fnancial labiities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and indude estimated interest
payments and sachudes Bhe impact of netting agreameants,

31st March 2025 Carrying _Contragtuplcashflows |
amount | L2 moaths er 1-2 years 1-5 years More than 5
i less Years |
Hon-derivative Mnancial labilities
Current borrowings 32836 328306 * 5 E
Trade payables 1.22 1.2 < - -
GOchar financial kabiities 934 934 - - -
Dedvative financial liabilities
315t March 2024
::L":: 1Zmonthsor  1-lyears  2-Syears  More than §
less YEars
Non-derivative financial liabilities
\Current barmwings 244,09 244,09 X - -
Trada payvables L&5 LES + - -
‘Orher financial liabiities 754 150 - - -
Dervative financial liabilities

The gross indlows;{outtiows) disdosed m tho above tablo mepresent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to dertvatwve financal llabéties hald for risk management
jpurpeses and which ane not wsually closed cul before contractual matunty, The disclosure shows: nat cash flow amounts for derfvatives that am net cash-sefthed and grose cash
Indlcres and putliow amounts for dervatives that have simultaneous gross cash settlement.

Iv. Market risk

Market risk ks the rsk that changes n merket prices — such a5 foregn exchange mtes and interest rabes — will affect the Company’s income or the value of s holdings of financial
Instruments., Markot risk i sttributalde 10 &l market risk sensitive financial instruments induding forsan curmency recehabiles and payables and kong lerm debt Since the Company
does not, bave any foreign currency recaivablas and payables, market rsk of the Compary i& mirimum.

Currency risk
The Company |s not Exposed 1 cumency risk due to s borrowangs, Trade payaliles, other payabilkes and recetvables being in Irdian Rupes, The funciional curency of the Comparny
15 Indian Rupes,

Interest rate risk

Irnterest rabe risk can be gither far wabee mterest mte rsk or cash fow nterest rate nsk. Fair value nterest rate nisk ks the sk of charges in far values of fived interest bearing
finaclal instruments because of fuctuations in the inlensl rated. Cash flow interest rate sk is the sk that tha futura cash fows of floatng interest bearing fnancial instruments
will fluctuate because of Muctustions in the interest rates,




Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company's interest rate risk arises from bormowings and fieed ncome financial instnements, Bomowings issued at fixed rabes exocses to far value interest rate risk. The interest

rate profile of the Company’s interest-Dearing financial instruments 25 reportad to the managemernt of the Company is a5 Tollows,

Jist March | Jlst March
2025 2024
Flxed-rate instruments
Financlal assets 208.42 209.13
Financial kabdities 328.36 244,09
[1E5.54) {34.56)
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets -
Financial kabdities -
Total (119,94} [34.96)

Falr value sensitivity analysis for fived-rate instruments
The Comparey does not account for ary. fiked-rate financial sssets or financial kabilities st far value through profit or loss, and the Comgany does not designote derwatves as
hedging Irstrumants under  fair value hedge accounting madel, Therelore, a changes in inteme rates at the reporting date would not affect, profit or koss.

Cash Mow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
There Is no any variabhs rete instruments outstanding &= on the year-end and actondingdy, there ks no smpact on acoount of change In interest Ata,
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MNote 33 : Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base o as to maintain creditor and market confidence and te
sustain future development of the business.

The Company monltors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’, For this purpase, adjusted net
debt is defined as total borrowings, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company's adjested net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total barrowlings 328.36 24409
Less : Cash and cash equivalent including bank 3.29 L0

. 1

balances
Adjusted net debt 325.07 243.08
Taotal equity 13.32 9.73
Less : Hedging reserve =
Adjusted equity 13.32 9.73
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratie 2441 24.00
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Nate - 34
Ratios as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
5. No.|Particulars = As at As ot Variation Reasons for variation greater than 25%,
i|Current Ratic 104 104 0%
2| Bebt-Equity Aati 3465 508 %
3[Dedt service coverage rato NA NA NA
4| Return on equity reti 28.24% E3.01% 55.16%  |Dus to detrease in proft
5 | Inventony turngeer ratio A HA A =
& Trade recenable tumaver ratic 3.05 4,36 -30% Sales increased alonn with increase in deldors |
Tracke payabie birmeer o M A, HA
Nt capital turnaver rati 16,38 16,30 5%,
et profit ratio L7% z A% |Due o peofit after ax ecreased
10| Returm on capial e plkyed® 11.15% 13.62% 1E%
11 [Rsturn on Tmeestment B.56% 7% 24

*ROCE rano has been restated for F.Y.2023-24

Formula for computation of ratios are as follows;

|S.n. [Particulars Formula
Current Assets
1 Currant Ratio Current Lizhilities
Total Dt
r) Derta-Equity Rata Toeal Equiity
3 [rett Service Coverage Rabo Earnireg before Intensst | Depraciation, Tax & Exceptional [tams

Inberest paymints + Long term kan repayments 4+ Laasa payments

4 Refurri on EQuity Ratio Brofit after Tax (Mtabutabie to Quwiers)
Averane Net worth (exciuding other comorehensve income)

] Irnsentory Turnosier Ratio Cost of matenial consumed + changes in inveniony+ stores & sparss consumpotion
fvirage lnventones

6 Trade Recafvables Turmover Ratio Revenue from oDemtions
Fomrace Trade Ricevable

! Trade Pavables Turmover Ratio Cowt of maberal consumed + changes in inventore+ stores & spares consumotion
Average Trade Payadles
a et Captal Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations
Average Working Capital
3 Ket Profit Rato Prafit after Tax
Revenue from opamations
o Return on Capital Employed Eaminas before interest & @x
fverage Tangible Met Worth + Average Long Term Debt
1 Risturn on [rsestment interest on FOR + Dividend Income + Gain on Investments

fwerade FOR + Averaoe Imvestment

Note - 35

A par the MO nediBcation dated August 05, 2022, the Central Gavernament has notifed the Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rufes, 2022 AS per Lhe
amended rues, Companies are required to maintain tack-up of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers' {books of account’) In electronic mode
that should be accessible in India at all the time. Also, the Companies are required to create backup of accounts on servers physically located n India on a daily
basis. The books of acoount of the Company is mainkainad in electronic mode on sarvers physically located In India and are readily accessible in India at all tmes.
Thie company IS maintaining back up of books of accounts on dady basis.

Note - 36
In the apinion of the manegement, the current aesel, loan and advances and ourrent labilities are approsimstely of the valie stated, if realised |/ paid in ordinany
course of buginess, The provision Tor all known liabilites = adequate and is ot in excess of amounts considered reasonably NECessary.

Note - 37

Balances of advoncoss, deposits, trade recenvables, trade payables and obher deb and credit balences ane subject 1o confirmation and reconciiation in certain cases.
Bgtivstments, iF any, i is regard would B carvied oul &5 and when ascartained, which in view of the managamant would not Be matesal,

Note - 38
Previous years fiqures have been regrouped and meclassified whenewsr nicessany.
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